Chapter

150,

151.

152.

153.

154.

TITLE XV: LAND USAGE

BUILDINGS

DIVISION OF LOTS

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

ZONING

JUNK ACCUMULATION

Item «»



(RN

Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage



Section

150.01

150.15
150.16
150.17
150.18
150.19
150.20

150.21
150.22
150.23
150.24

150.35
150.36
150.37
150.38
150.39
150.40
150.41

150.99

CHAPTER 150: BUILDINGS

State Building Code
Agency designated
Dangerous Buildings
Title
Definitions

Prohibition of dangerous buildings

Notice of dangerous building; hearing

Dangerous Building Hearing Officer; duties; hearing; order

Enforcement hearing before the Township Board or Dangerous Building Board of
Appeals

Implementation and enforcement of remedies

Sanction for nonconformance with order

Dangerous Building Board of Appeals

Appeal of Township Board/Board of Appeals decision

Address, Street and Road Numbering

Preamble
Name
Purpose
Definitions
Regulation
Violation
Construction

Penalty



e Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

STATE BUILDING CODE

150.01 AGENCY DESIGNATED.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan Building, Electrical, Plumbing and Mechanical Code, in
accordance with Public Act 230 0f 1972, 9, being M.C.L.A. 125.1509, as amended, the Building Official of
the township is hereby designated as the enforcing agency to discharge the responsibility of the township
under Public Act 230 of 1972, being M.C.L.A. 125.1501 through 125.1531, as amended. The township
assumes responsibility for the administration and enforcement of said Act throughout its corporate limits.
(Ord. 26, passed 10-5-1999)

DANGEROUS BUILDINGS

150.15 TITLE.

This subchapter shall be known and cited as the Big Rapids Charter Township Dangerous Buildings
Subchapter.
(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)

150.16 DEFINITIONS.

For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning.

DANGEROUS BUILDING. Any building or structure, residential or otherwise that has one or more of
the following defects or is in one or more of the following conditions:

(1) A door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit does not conform to the Township
Fire Code or Township Building Code;

(2) A portion of the building or structure is damaged by fire, wind, flood or other cause so that the
structural strength or stability of the building or structure is appreciably less than it was before the
catastrophe and does not meet the minimum requirements of the Housing Law of Michigan, Public Act 167
of 1917, being M.C.L.A. 125.401 et seq., as amended, or the Township Building Code for a new building
or structure, purpose or location;

(3) A part of the building or structure is likely to fall, become detached or dislodged, or collapse,
and injure persons or damage property;



Buildings 5

(4} A portion of the building or structure has settled to such an extent that walls or other
structural portions of the building or structure have materially less resistance to wind than is required in the
case of new construction by the Housing Law of Michigan, Public Act 167 0f 1917, as amended, (M.C.L.A.
125.401 et seq.), or the Township Building Code;

(5) The building or structure, or a part of the building or structure, because of dilapidation,
deterioration, decay, faulty construction or the removal or movement of some portion of the ground
necessary for the support, or for other reason, is likely to partially or completely collapse, or some portion
of the foundation or underpinning of the building or structure is likely to fall or give way;

(6) The building or structure, or a part of the building or structure, is manifestly unsafe for the
purpose for which it is used;

(7) The building or structure is damaged by fire, wind or flood, or is dilapidated or deteriorated
and becomes an attractive nuisance to children who might play in the building or structure to their danger,
or becomes a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons, or enables persons to resort to the building
or structure for committing a nuisance or an unlawful or immoral act;

(8) A building or structure used or intended to be used for dwelling purposes, including the
adjoining grounds, because of dilapidation, decay, damage, faulty construction or arrangement, or
otherwise, is unsanitary or unfit for human habitation, is in a condition that the health officer of the
township or county determines is likely to cause sickness or disease, or is likely to injure the health, safety
or general welfare of people living in the dwelling;

(9) A building or structure is vacant, dilapidated and open at door or window, leaving the interior
of the building exposed to the elements or accessible to entrance by trespassers; and

(10) A building or structure that is unoccupied and is not listed as being available for sale, lease or
rent with a real estate broker licensed under Article 25 of the Occupational Code, Public Act 299 of 1980,
(M.C.L.A. 339.2501 et seq.), or is not publicly offered for sale by the owner. This division (10) does not
apply to either of the following:

(a) A building or structure as to which the owner or agent does both of the following:

1. Notifies the local authority that the building or structure will remain unoccupied. The
notice shall be given by the owner or agent not more than 30 days after the building or structure becomes
unoccupied; and

2. Maintains the exterior of the building or structure and adjoining grounds in
accordance with this subchapter and the Housing Law of Michigan, Public Act 167 of 1917, as amended,
(M.C.L.A. 125.401 et seq.), or the Township Building Code.



6 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

(b) A secondary dwelling of the owner that is regularly unoccupied for a period of time each
year, if the owner notifies the local authority that the dwelling will remain unoccupied for periods of time
throughout the year. An owner who has given the notice prescribed by this division (10)(b) shall notify the
local authority not more than 30 days after the dwelling no longer qualifies for this exception. As used in
this division (10)(b),

SECONDARY DWELLING means a dwelling such as a vacation home, hunting cabin or summer
home that is occupied by the owner or a member of the owner’s family during part of year.

ENFORCING AGENCY. This township, through the Township Building Official and/or such other
official(s) or agency as may be designated by the Township Board to enforce this subchapter.

TOWNSHIP BUILDING CODE. The Building Code administered and enforced in the township
pursuant to the Stille-DeRossett-Hale Single State Construction Code Act, Public Act 230 of 1972, as
amended, (M.C.L.A. 125.1501 et seq.).

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)

150.17 PROHIBITION OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS.

It shall be unlawful for any owner or agent thereof to keep or maintain any building or part thereof
which is a dangerous building as defined in this subchapter.
(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009) Penalty, see 150.99

150.18 NOTICE OF DANGEROUS BUILDING; HEARING.

(A) Notice requirement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this subchapter, if a building or
structure is found to be a dangerous building, the enforcing agency shall issue a notice that the building or
structure is a dangerous building.

(B) Parties entitled to notice. The notice shall be served on each owner of or party in interest in the
building or structure in whose name the property appears on the last local tax assessment records of the
township.

(C) Contents of notice. The notice shall specify the time and place of a hearing on whether the
building or structure is a dangerous building and state that the person to whom the notice is directed shall
have the opportunity at the hearing to show cause why the Hearing Officer should not order the building or
structure to be demolished, otherwise made safe or properly maintained.

(D) Service of notice. The notice shall be in writing and shall be served upon the person to whom the
notice is directed either personally or by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the owner or
party in interest at the address shown on the tax records. If a notice is served upon a person



Buildings 7

by certified mail, a copy of the notice shall also be posted upon a conspicuous part of the building or
structure. The notice shall be served upon the owner or party in interest at least ten days before the date of
the hearing included in the notice.

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)

150.19 DANGEROUS BUILDING HEARING OFFICER; DUTIES; HEARING; ORDER.

(A) Appointment of Hearing Officer. The Hearing Officer shall be appointed by the Township
Supervisor to serve at his or her pleasure. The Hearing Officer shall be a person who has expertise in
housing matters, including, but not limited to, an engineer, architect, building contractor, building inspector
or member of a community housing organization. An employee of the enforcing agency shall not be
appointed as a Hearing Officer.

(B) Filing dangerous building notice with Hearing Officer. The enforcing agency shall file a copy of
the notice of the dangerous condition of any building with the Hearing Officer.

(C) Hearing testimony and decision. At a hearing prescribed by this subchapter, the Hearing Officer
shall take testimony of the enforcing agency, the owner of the property and any interested party. Not more
than five days after completion of the hearing, the Hearing Officer shall render a decision either closing the
proceedings or ordering the building or structure demolished, otherwise made safe, or properly maintained.

(D) Compliance with Hearing Officer Order. If the Hearing Officer determines that the building or
structure should be demolished, otherwise made safe or properly maintained, the Hearing Officer shall so
order, fixing a time in the order for the owner, agent or lessee to comply with the order. If the building is a
dangerous building under 150.16 in division (10) of the definition for dangerous building, the order may
require the owner or agent to maintain the exterior of the building and adjoining grounds owned by the
owner of the building including, but not limited to, the maintenance of lawns, trees and shrubs,

(E) Noncompliance with Hearing Officer order/request to enforce order. If the owner, agent or lessee
fails to appear or neglects or refuses to comply with the order issued under division (D) above, the Hearing
Officer shall file a report of the findings and a copy of the order with the Township Board not more than
five days after noncompliance by the owner and request that necessary action be taken to enforce the order.
If the Township Board has established a Dangerous Building Board of Appeals pursuant to 150.23, the
Hearing Officer shall file the report of the findings and a copy of the order with the Board of Appeals and
request that necessary action be taken to enforce the order. A copy of the findings and order of the Hearing
Officer shall be served on the owner, agent or lessee in the manner prescribed in 150.18(D).

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)



8 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

150.20 ENFORCEMENT HEARING BEFORE THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OR DANGEROUS
BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS.

The Township Board, or the Dangerous Building Board of Appeals, as applicable, shall fix a date not
less than 30 days after the hearing prescribed in 150.19(C) for a hearing on the findings and order of the
Hearing Officer and shall give notice to the owner, agent or lessee in the manner prescribed in 150.18(D) of
the time and place of the hearing. At the hearing, the owner, agent or lessee shall be given the opportunity
to show because why the order should not be enforced. The Township Board or the Board of Appeals shall
either approve, disapprove or modify the order. If the Township Board or the Board of Appeals approves or
modifies the order, the Township Board shall take all necessary action to enforce the order. If the order is
approved or modified, the owner, agent or lessee shall comply with the order within 60 days after the date
of the hearing under this section. In the case of an order of demolition, if the Township Board or the Board
of Appeals determines that the building or structure has been substantially destroyed by fire, wind, flood or
other natural disaster and the cost of repair of the building or structure will be greater than the state
equalized value of the building or structure, the owner, agent or lessee shall comply with the order of
demolition within 21 days after the date of the hearing under this section.

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009) Penalty, see 150.99

150.21 IMPLEMENTATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF REMEDIES.

(A) Implementation of order by township. In the event of the failure or refusal of the owner or party in
interest to comply with the decision of the Township Board, or the Board of Appeals, as applicable, the
Township Board may, in its discretion, contract for the demolition, making safe or maintaining the exterior
of the building or structure or grounds adjoining the building or structure.

{B) Reimbursement of costs. The costs of the demolition, of making the building safe, or of
maintaining the exterior of the building or structure or grounds adjoining the building or structure, incurred
by the township to bring the property into conformance with this subchapter shall be reimbursed to the
township by the owner or party in interest in whose name the property appears.

(C) Notice of costs. The owner or party in interest in whose name the property appears upon the last
local tax assessment records shall be notified by the Township Assessor of the amount of the costs of the
demolition, of making the building safe, or of maintaining the exterior of the building or structure or
grounds adjoining the building or structure, by first class mail at the address shown on the township
records.

(D) Lien for unpaid costs. If the owner or party in interest fails to pay the costs within 30 days after
mailing by the Assessor of the notice of the amount of the cost, in the case of a single-family dwelling or a
two-family dwelling, the township shall have a lien for the costs incurred by the township to bring the
property into conformance with this subchapter. The lien shall not take effect until notice of the lien has
been filed or recorded as provided by law. A lien provided for in this division (D) does not have



Buildings 9

priority over previously filed or recorded liens and encumbrances. The lien for the costs shall be collected
and treated in the same manner as provided for property tax liens under the General Property Tax Act,
Public Act 206 of 1893, as amended, (M.C.L.A. 211.1 et seq.).

(E) Court judgment for unpaid costs. In addition to other remedies under this subchapter, the township
may bring an action against the owner of the building or structure for the full cost of the demolition, of
making the building safe, or of maintaining the exterior of the building or structure or grounds adjoining the
building or structure. In the case of a single-family dwelling or a two-family dwelling, the township shall
have a lien on the property for the amount of a judgment obtained pursuant to this division (E). The lien
provided for in this division (E) shall not take effect until notice of the lien is filed and recorded as
provided for by law. The lien does not have priority over prior filed or recorded liens and encumbrances.

(F) Enforcement of judgment. A judgment in an action brought pursuant to division (E) above may be
enforced against assets of the owner other than the building or structure.

(G) Lien for judgment amount. In the case of a single-family dwelling or a two-family dwelling the
township shall have a lien for the amount of a judgment obtained pursuant to division (E) above against the
owner’s interest in all real property located in this state that is owned in whole or in part by the owner of the
building or structure against which the judgment is obtained. A lien provided for in this division (G) does
not take effect until notice of the lien is filed or recorded as provided by law, and the lien does not have
priority over prior filed or recorded liens and encumbrances.

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)

150.22 SANCTION FOR NONCONFORMANCE WITH ORDER.

Any person or other entity who fails or refuses to comply with an order approved or modified by the
Township Board, or Board of Appeals, as applicable, under 150.20 within the time prescribed by that
section is responsible for a municipal civil infraction.

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009) Penalty, see 150.99

150.23 DANGEROUS BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS.

(A) Establishment and duties. The Township Board may establish a Dangerous Building Board of
Appeals to hear all of the cases and carry out all of the duties of the Township Board described in 150.20. If
the Township Board establishes a Board of Appeals, the establishment and operation of the Board of

Appeals shall be controlled by the following provisions of this section.

(B) Membership. The Board of Appeals shall be appointed by the Township Board and shall consist of
the following members:

(1) A building contractor;



10 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

(2) A registered architect or engineer;
(3) Two members of the general public; and

(4) Anindividual registered as a building official, plan reviewer or inspector under the Building
Officials and Inspectors Registration Act, Public Act 54 of 1986, (M.C.L.A. 338.2301 et seq.). The
individual may not be an employee of the enforcing agency.

(C) Terms. Board of Appeals members shall be appointed for three years, except that of the members
first appointed, two members shall serve for one year, two members shall serve for two years, and one
member shall serve for three years. A vacancy created other than by expiration of a term shall be filled for
the balance of the unexpired term in the same manner as the original appointment. A member may be
reappointed for additional terms.

(D) Officers. The Board of Appeals annually shall select a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and other
officers that the Board of Appeals considers necessary.

(E) Quorum and final action votes. A majority of the Board of Appeals members appointed and
serving constitutes a quorum. Final action of the Board of Appeals shall be only by affirmative vote of a
majority of the Board members appointed and serving.

(F) Compensation and expenses. The Township Board shall fix the amount of any per diem
compensation provided to the members of the Board of Appeals. Expenses of the Board of Appeals
incurred in the performance of official duties may be reimbursed as provided by law for employees of the
Township Board.

(G) Open Meetings Act applicable. A meeting of the Board of Appeals shall be held pursuant to the
Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended, (M.C.L.A. 15.261 et seq.). Public notice of the
time, date and place of the meeting shall be given in the manner required by the Open Meetings Act.

(H) Freedom of Information Act applicable. A writing prepared, owned, used, in the possession of or
retained by the Board of Appeals in the performance of an official function shall be made available to the
public pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, Public Act 442 of 1976, as amended, (M.C.L.A. 15.231
et seq.).

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)

150.24 APPEAL OF TOWNSHIP BOARD/BOARD OF APPEALS DECISION.

An owner aggrieved by any final decision or order of the Township Board, or the Board of Appeals, as
applicable, under 150.20 may appeal the decision or order to the circuit court by filing a petition for an
order of superintending control within 20 days from the date of the decision.

(Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)



Buildings 1

ADDRESS, STREET AND ROAD NUMBERING

150.35 PREAMBLE.

It is hereby determined by the Township Board that the health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of
the township would be better served by the establishment of a township wide street and road numbering
system. Such uniform street and road numbering will enable the police agencies, ambulance service and
public utilities to more rapidly identify and locate properties within the township. It is further determined
that the establishment of regulations and standards be provided within the framework of governing law.
(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999)

150.36 NAME.

This subchapter shall be known and cited as Big Rapids Charter Township Address, Street and Road
Numbering Subchapter.
(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999)

150.37 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this subchapter is to establish a township wide, with the exception of city street and
road numbering system in a uniform logical manner; to provide for a central point to issue and control
numbering and to provide rules and guidelines to facilitate enforcement thereof.

(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999)

150.38 DEFINITIONS.

For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning.

EAST AND WEST BASE LINE. A line drawn east and west across the south boundary of the
township {12 Mile Road).

INTERESTED PARTY. The emergency services, owner, occupant, Building Department public
utilities or any other governmental agency.

NORTH AND SOUTH BASE LINE. A line drawn north and south across the east boundary of the
township (180th Avenue).



12 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

ODD OR EVEN NUMBER. The system of having even numbers assigned on the right side and odd
numbers on the left side of all streets and roads as a person faces away from the base lines.

PREMISES. Any lot or parcel of land owned by any person, firm or corporation, public or private,
improved with buildings or vacant, whether occupied or not.

STREET NUMBER or ROAD NUMBER. Any series of numbers assigned by the Township Building
Department in conformance with the township numbering grid system for the purpose of identification of a
particular premises location in relation to the grid system.

STREET OR ROAD NAME. Any official name as recognized by government authority and no such
named street or road shall be changed without approval of the Township Board and the County Road
Commission.

TOWNSHIP NUMBERING SYSTEM.

(1) Refersto a general east and west, and a north and south numbering system with the provision
of allowing 1,000 numbers per mile for each mile of distance from the base lines. Numbering of east - west
streets or roads shall begin at 18000 at the north - south base line (180th Avenue) and the numbering of
north - south streets or roads shall begin at 12000 at the east - west base line (12 Mile Road).

(2) Those areas of the township that were detached from the City of Big Rapids, and that use the
city addressing scheme, will be numbered in accordance with the addressing policies that the city had in
effect at the time of detachment.

(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999)

150.39 REGULATION.

(A) All premises and mailboxes shall bear a distinctive street number in accordance with and as
designated upon the street numbering maps on file in the office of the Township Building Department
which maps, by reference, together with any revisions thereof shall become an operative part of this
subchapter.

(B) Any owner of any premises shall place upon the street front of such premises and on the street
mailbox of such premises, in such position to be plainly visible, such designated number.

{C) Number on mailboxes shall be displayed in such manner as to be plainly visible from road traffic
lanes in either direction of approach. The numbers shall be of a contrasting reflectorized color, to their
background and shall be not less than one inch in height; numbers in block or script displayed on building
fronts shall be of a contrasting reflectorized color to their background and shall be not less than three inches
in height. Where there is no mail delivery, the assigned number shall be displayed



Buildings 13

either on the street front of the premises or on a roadside sign or both in such manner as to be plainly
visible from road traffic lanes in either direction of approach.

(D) Where the mailbox is located on a street other than the premises as numbered, the mailbox shall
show both the number assigned and the street name of the premises in contrasting reflectorized color, to
their background and shall be not less than one inch in height. Grouping of mailboxes shall be permitted
but the grouping shall be in sequential order according to the assigned number.

(E) Numbers shall be assigned and recorded by the Township Building Department at the request of
any interested party in accordance with these regulations.
(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999) Penalty, see 150.99

150.40 VIOLATION.

Failure to display numbers within 30 days after assignment and recordation, or in the case of new
construction, within 30 days after a letter or certificate of occupancy has been issued, shall be considered a
violation of this subchapter.

{Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999) Penalty, see 150.99

150.41 CONSTRUCTION.

This subchapter shall not supersede any existing city authority for street numbering, but shall be in
addition to and not in conflict with all other laws and ordinances respecting street and road numbering.
(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999)

150.99 PENALTY.

(A) Any person violating any provision of this chapter, for which no other penalty is provided, shall be
subject to the penalty provisions of 10.99.

(B) Any person or other entity who fails or refuses to comply with an order approved or modified by
the Township Board, or Board of Appeals, as applicable, under 150.20 within the time prescribed by that
section is responsible for a municipal civil infraction as defined by state law and subject to a civil fine of an
amount as set by the Township Board from time to time, plus costs, which may include all direct or indirect
expenses to which the township has been put in connection with the violation. A violator of 150.15 through
150.24 shall also be subject to such additional sanctions, remedies and judicial orders as are authorized

under state law. Each day a violation of this 150.15 through 150.24 continues to exist constitutes a separate
violation.

2016 S-1 Repl.



14 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

(C) Any person, firm or corporation violating the provisions of 150.35 through 150.41 shall be subject
to a fine of an amount as set by the Township Board from time to time. In addition to the imposition of the
foregoing fines, penalties and other legal remedies, the Township Board may cause the proper posting of
numbers, and the cost thereof assessed against the owner of such premises.

(Ord. 27, passed 10-5-1999; Ord. 30, passed 3-16-2009)



CHAPTER 151: DIVISION OF LOTS

Section

Land Division

151.01 Title

151.02 Purpose

151.03 Definitions

151.04 Prior approval requirements for land divisions

151.05 Application for land division approval

151.06 Procedure for review of applications for land divisions approval

151.07 Standards for approval of land divisions

151.08 Consequence of noncompliance with land division approval requirements

Procedures and Standards
151.20 Approval required
151.21 Division
151.22 Approval

151.99 Penalty

LAND DIVISION

151.01 TITLE.

This subchapter shall be known and cited as the Big Rapids Charter Township Land Division
Subchapter.
(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)

151.02 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this subchapter is to carry out the provisions of the State Land Division Act (Public Act
288 of 1967, being M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560.293, as amended, formerly known as the

15



16 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

Subdivision Control Act), to prevent the creation of parcels of property which do not comply with
applicable ordinances and said Act, to minimize potential boundary disputes, to maintain orderly
development of the community, and otherwise provide for the health, safety and welfare of the residents
and property owners of the municipality by establishing reasonable standards for prior review and approval
of land divisions within the township.

(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)

151.03 DEFINITIONS.

For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning.

APPLICANT. A natural person, firm, association, partnership, corporation or combination of any of
them that holds an ownership interest in land whether recorded or not.

DIVIDE or DIVISION. The partitioning or splitting of a parcel or tract of land by the proprietor
thereof or by his or her heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors or assigns, for the
purpose of sale or lease of more than one year, or of building development that results in one or more
parcels of less than 40 acres or the equivalent, and that satisfies the requirements of 108 and 109 of the
State Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967, being M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560,293, as amended).
DIVIDE and DIVISION does not include a property transfer between two or more adjacent parcels, if the
property taken from one parcel is added to an adjacent parcel; and any resulting parcel shall not be
considered a building site unless the parcel conforms to the requirements of the State Land Division Act,
this subchapter and other applicable ordinances.

EXEMPT SPLIT or EXEMPT DIVISION. The partitioning or splitting of a parcel or tract of land by
the proprietor thereof, or by his or her heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors or
assigns that does not result in one or more parcels of less than 40 acres or the equivalent; provided all
resulting parcels are accessible for vehicular travel and utilities from existing public roads through existing
adequate roads or easements, or through areas owned by the owner of the parcel that can provide such
access.

FORTY ACRES OR THE EQUIVALENT. Either 40 acres, a quarter-quarter section containing not
less than 30 acres or a government lot containing not less than 30 acres.

GOVERNING BODY. The Big Rapids Charter Township Board.
(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)
151.04 PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS FOR LAND DIVISIONS.

Land in the township shall not be divided without the prior review and approval of the Township
Assessor, or other official designated by the governing body, in accordance with this subchapter and the



Division of Lots 17

State Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967, being M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560.293, as amended);
provided that the following shall be exempted from this requirement:

(A) A parcel proposed for subdivision through a recorded plat pursuant to the State Land Division Act;

(B) A lot in a recorded plat proposed to be divided in accordance with the State Land Division Act;
and

(C) An exempt split as defined in this subchapter.
(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)

151.05 APPLICATION FOR LAND DIVISION APPROVAL.

An applicant shall file all of the following with the Township Assessor or other official designated by
the governing body for review and approval of a proposed land division before making any division either
by deed, land contract lease for more than one year, or for building development:

(A) A completed application form on such form as may be approved by the Township Board;
(B) Proof of fee ownership of the land proposed to be divided;

(C) A tentative parcel map drawn to scale including an accurate legal description of each proposed
division, and showing the boundary lines, approximate dimensions, and the accessibility of each division
from existing or proposed public roads for automobile traffic and public utilities;

(D) Proof that all standards of the State Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967, being M.C.L.A.
560.101 through 560.293, as amended) and this subchapter have been met;

(E) The history and specifications of the land proposed to be divided sufficient to establish that the
proposed division complies with 108 of the State Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967, being
M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560.293, as amended),

(F) Ifatransfer of division rights is proposed in the land transfer, detailed information about the terms
and availability of the proposed division rights transfer;

(G) Unless a division creates a parcel which is acknowledged and declared to be not a development
site, all divisions shall result in buildable parcels with sufficient area to comply with all required setback
provisions, minimum floor areas, off-street parking spaces, approved on-site sewage disposal and water
well locations (where public water and sewer service is not available), access to existing public utilities and
public roads, and maximum allowed area coverage of buildings and structures on the site. Declared
agricultural land and land for forestry use shall not be subject to the foregoing as Adevelopment sites as
provided in the State Land Division Act at 102; and



18 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

(H) The fee as may from time to time be established by resolution of the governing body of the
township for land division reviews pursuant to this subchapter to cover the costs of review of the
application and administration of the subchapter and the State Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967,
being M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560.293, as amended).

(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997) Penalty, see 151.99

151.06 PROCEDURE FOR REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR LAND DIVISIONS
APPROVAL.

(A) The Assessor or other designee shall approve, approve with reasonable conditions to assure
compliance with applicable ordinances and the protection of public health, safety and general welfare, or
disapprove the land division applied for within 30 days after receipt of the application package conforming
to this subchapter’s requirements, and shall promptly notify the applicant of the decision and the reasons for
any denial. If the application package does not conform to this subchapter’s requirements and the State
Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967, being M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560.293, as amended), the
Assessor or other designee shall return the same to the applicant for completion and refiling in accordance
with this subchapter and the State Land Division Act.

(B) Any person or entity aggrieved by the decision of the Assessor or designee may, within 30 days of
said decision appea! the decision to the governing body of the township or such other body or person
designated by the governing body which shall consider and resolve such appeal by a majority vote of said
Board or by the designee at its next regular meeting or session affording sufficient time for a 20-day written
notice to the applicant ( and appellant where other than the applicant) of the time and date of said meeting
and appellate hearing.

(C) The Assessor or designee shall maintain an official record of all approved and accomplished land
divisions or transfers.
(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)

151.07 STANDARDS FOR APPROVAL OF LAND DIVISIONS.
A proposed land division shall be approved if the following criteria are met:

(A) All the parcels to be created by the proposed land division(s) fully comply with the applicable lot
(parcel), yard and area requirements or pertinent ordinances, including, but not limited to, minimum lot
(parcel) frontage/width, minimum road frontage, minimum lot (parcel) area, and maximum lot (parcel)
coverage and minimum setbacks for existing buildings/structures or have received a variance from such
requirement(s) from the appropriate Zoning Board of Appeals;

(B) The proposed land division(s) comply with all requirements of the State Land Division Act (Public
Act 288 of 1967, being M.C.L.A. 560.101 through 560.293, as amended) and this subchapter;



Division of Lots 19

(C) All parcels created and remaining have existing adequate accessibility, or an area available
therefor, to a public road for public utilities and emergency and other vehicles not less than the
requirements of all applicable ordinances; and

(D) The ratio of depth to width of any parcel created by the division does not exceed a four to one ratio
exclusive of access roads, easements or non-development sites. The depth of a parcel created by a land
division shall be measured within the boundaries of each parcel from the abutting road right-of-way to the
most remote boundary line point of the parcel from the point of commencement of the measurement. The
width of a parcel shall be measured at the abutting road or right-of-way line, or as otherwise provided in
any applicable ordinances.

(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)

151.08 CONSEQUENCE OF NONCOMPLIANCE WITH LAND DIVISION APPROVAL
REQUIREMENTS.

Any parcel created in noncompliance with this subchapter shall not be eligible for any building
permits, or zoning approvals, such as conditional land use approval or site plan approval, and shall not be
recognized as a separate parcel on the assessment roll. In addition, violation of this subchapter shall subject
the violator to the penalties and enforcement actions set forth in 151.99, and as may otherwise be provided
by law.

(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)

PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS

151.20 APPROVAL REQUIRED.

The division of a lot in a recorded plat in the township is prohibited, unless approved by the Township
Assessor, following application to the Township Assessor. The application shall be filed with the Township
Assessor and shall contain a drawing showing the dimensions and description of each part of the lot as
proposed for dividing. The application shall also state the reasons for the proposed division.

(Ord. 9, passed 5-7-1985)

151.21 DIVISION.

(A} No lot in a recorded plat shall be divided into more than four parts, and the resulting lots shall be
at least the minimum area required for building by the zoning ordinance in effect in the township at the time
of application, for the district in which the platted lot is located. No building permit shall be issued, or any
building construction commenced, unless the division has been approved by the Township



20 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

Assessor, and the suitability of the land for building sites has been approved by the County Health
Department.

(B) The division of a lot resulting in a smaller area than prescribed by division (A) above may be
permitted by the Township Assessor, but only for the purpose of adding to the existing building site or
sites. The application shall be in affidavit form and shall so state the intent of the division.

(Ord. 9, passed 5-7-1985) Penalty, see 151.99

151.22 APPROVAL.

Approval of the division of a lot in a recorded plat shall be contingent on an agreement in writing by
the applicant that any sales contract, deed or any other document presented for recording at the office of the
County Register of Deeds shall be accompanied by a copy of the written approval of the Township
Assessor and a copy of the drawing of the lot as approved by the Township Assessor for dividing.

(Ord. 9, passed 5-7-1985)

151.99 PENALTY.

(A) Any person violating any provision of this chapter, for which no other penalty is provided, shall be
subject to the penalty provisions of 10.99.

(B) (1) Any person who violates any of the provisions of 151.01 through 151.08 shall be deemed
guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of an amount as set by the Township Board from
time to time or by imprisonment in the county jail for not to exceed 90 days or by both such fine and
imprisonment.

(2) Any person who violates any of the provisions of 151.01 through 151.08 shall also be subject
to a civil action seeking invalidation of the land division and appropriate injunctive or other relief.
(Ord. 9.01, passed 11-4-1997)



CHAPTER 152: FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

Section

152.01 Agency defined
152.02 Code appendix enforced
152.03 Designation of regulated flood prone hazard areas

152.01 AGENCY DEFINED.

Pursuant to the provisions of the State Construction Code, in accordance with 8b(6) of Public Act 230
of 1972, being M.C.L.A. 125.1501 through 125.1531, as amended, the Building Official of the township is
hereby designated as the enforcing agency to discharge the responsibility of the township under Public Act
230 of 1972, being M.C.L.A. 125.1501 through 125.1531, as amended. The township assumes
responsibility for the administration and enforcement of said Act throughout the corporate limits of the
community adopting this chapter.

(Ord. 34, passed 1-6-2015)

152.02 CODE APPENDIX ENFORCED.

Pursuant to the provisions of the State Construction Code, in accordance with 8b(6) of Public Act 230
0f 1972, being M.C.L.A. 125.1501 through 125.1531, as amended, Appendix G of the State Building Code
shall be enforced by the enforcing agency within the jurisdiction of the community adopting this chapter.
{Ord. 34, passed 1-6-2015)

152.03 DESIGNATION OF REGULATED FLOOD PRONE HAZARD AREAS.

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Study (FIS) entitled Mecosta
County, Michigan (41l Jurisdictions) and dated February 4, 2015 and the Flood Insurance Rate Map(s)
(FIRMS) panel number(s) of 26107C; 0127C, 0131C, 0133C, 0134C, 0151C, 0153C, 0154C, 0161C,
0162C, 0163C and 0164C dated February 4, 2015 are adopted by reference for the purposes of
administration of the State Construction Code, and declared to be a part of 1612.3 of the State Building
Code, and to provide the content of the AFlood Hazards section of Table R301.2(1) of the State Residential
Code.

(Ord. 34, passed 1-6-2015)

21



22

Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage



CHAPTER 153: ZONING

Section

Preantble

153.001 Purpose
153.002 Continuance of nonconforming uses and buildings
153.003 Essential service clause

Districts

153.015 Establishment of districts

153.016 A Residential District (uses and dimension regulations)
153.017 B Residential District (uses and dimension regulations)
153.018 Agricultural District (uses and dimension regulations)
153.019 Commercial District (uses and dimension regulations)
153.020 Industrial District

153.021 Highway Interchange District (HI)

Building Standards and Facilities

153.035 Building standards and facilities

Nonconforming Uses

153.050 Nonconforming use; generally

153.051 Alterations of a nonconforming use building

153.052 Building damage of a nonconforming use building
153.053 Discontinuance of nonconforming use

153.054 Completion of nonconforming buildings and structures
153.055 Substitution or expansion of nonconforming uses

Water and Sewage

153.070 Water supply and sewage disposal facilities



24

Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

Shoreland Regulations

153.085 Shoreland regulations

Supplemental Regulations
153.100 Restrictions of record
153.101 Automobile or travel trailers
153.102 Outdoor lighting regulations

Parking
153.115 Vehicular parking space, access and lighting
Special Use Permits

153.130 Uses by special permit

Planned Unit Development
153.145 Intent
153.146 Modification powers
153.147 Application procedure
153.148 Review procedure
153.149 Open space preservation

Temporary Dwelling Structures

153.160 Temporary dwelling structures
153.161 Regulations governing the location of junk yards

Advertising Signs
153.175 Advertising signs
153.176 Uses and conditions
153.177 Exemptions
153.178 Sign permits
Site Use Design Standards

153.190 Site use standards



Zoning

Mineral Mining Control

153.205 Title

153.206 Interpretation, existing operation and restrictions
153.207 Definitions

153.208 License required

153.209 Licensing procedure

153.210 Application contents

153.211 Fees

153.212 Issuance of license

153.213 Conditions in license
153.214 Fencing and screening
153.215 Hours of operation

153.216 Road access

153.217 Road maintenance

153.218 Operation of use

153.219 Noise standards

153.220 Performance bond

153.221 Plan of operations

153.222 Transportation vehicle standards
153.223 Lighting

153.224 Drainage

153.225 Setbacks

153.226 Reclamation plan

153.227 General requirements
153.228 Termination and reclamation
153.229 Excavation/filling

153.230 Bank slopes

153.231 Vegetation

153.232 Cessation of mining

153.233 Remedies

Communication Towers

153.245 Communication towers
153.246 Qualifying conditions

Sexually Oriented Businesses

153.250 Purpose and findings
153.251 Uses subject to control
153.252 Definitions

153.253 Unlawful activities

153.254 Scienter required to prove violation or business liability
153.259 Penalty



Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

Administration and Enforcement

153.260 Zoning Administrator
153.261 Permits
153.262 Site plan review

Board of Appeals

153.275 Organization

153.276 Meetings; powers and duties of Chairperson; records
153.277 Duties

153.278 Hearings and notices

Definitions
153.290 Definitions

Legal Status
153.305 Validity

153.306 Effective date
153.999 Penalty



Zoning 27

PREAMBLE

153.001 PURPOSE.
(A) To promote the public health, safety, morals and general welfare of the township;

(B) To encourage the use of lands in accordance with their characters and capabilities and to limit the
improper use of land;

(C) To avoid overcrowding of land;
(D) To lessen congestion on the public roads;
(E) To reduce hazards to life and property; and

(F) To conserve expenditure of funds for public improvements and services to conform to the most
advantageous use of land and resources.
(Ord. 2, passed 8-12-1971; Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974)

153.002 CONTINUANCE OF NONCONFORMING USES AND BUILDINGS.

The lawful use of any building, land or premises existing prior to the enactment of this chapter may be
continued on such terms as hereinafter provided, (see 153.050) although such use does not conform to all of
the provisions of this chapter or amendment.

(Ord. 2, passed 8-12-1971; Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974)

153.003 ESSENTIAL SERVICE CLAUSE.

The erection, construction, alteration or maintenance by public utilities or municipal departments or
commissions, of overhead or underground gas, electrical, steam or water, distribution or transmission
systems, collection, communication, supply or disposal systems, including mains, drains, sewers, pipes,
conduits, wires, cables, fire alarm boxes, police call boxes, traffic signals, hydrants, towers, poles, electrical
substations, gas regulator stations and other similar equipment and accessories in connection therewith,
reasonably necessary for the furnishing of adequate service by such public utility or municipal department
or commission or for the public health or safety or general welfare, shall be permitted as authorized by law
and other ordinances of the county and the township in any use district, it being the intention hereof to
exempt such erection, construction, alteration and maintenance from the application of this chapter.
(Ord. 2, passed 8-12-1971; Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974)



28 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

DISTRICTS

153.015 ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS.
(A) The unincorporated portion of the township is hereby divided into the following land use districts:

(1) A-Residential District;
(2) B-Residential District;
(3) Commercial District;
(4) Industrial District;
(5) Highway Interchange District; and
(6) Agricultural District.

(B) Said districts are bounded on a map entitled Land Use Map of Big Rapids Charter Township,
Michigan, which map is made part of this chapter,

(C) The districts above designated are described as in Big Rapids Township, Mecosta County,
Michigan, as follows:

(1) A-Residential District.

(a) Section 1: The E 1/2 of the NE 1/4 and the E 1/2 of the SE 1/4;

(b) Section 2: The part of the SE 1/4 outside the city limits of the City of Big Rapids;

(c) Section 10: The E 1/2 of the NW 1/4; the part of the S 1/2, lying outside of the limits of
the City of Big Rapids; the E 1/2 of the NE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 and the SW 1/4 of the NW
1/4;

(d) Section 12: All of the NE 1/4 and the E 1/2 of the NW 1/4;

(e) Section 13; The part of the S 1/2 of the S 1/2 of the SW 1/4 lying west of the Old
Millpond Road;

(f) Section 14: The part of the S 1/2 of the S 1/2 of the SE 1/4 lying east of the Muskegon
River;

(g) Section 15: All the section lying outside of the limits of the City of Big Rapids;

(h) Section 21: The E 1/2 of the SE 1/4;



Zoning 29
(i) Section 22: All that part of the NE 1/4 lying outside the city limits of the City of Big
Rapids, the entire NW 1/4, the entire SW 1/4 and the W 1/2 of the SE 1/4;
(i) Section 23: All that part of Section 23 lying north and east of the Muskegon River;

(k) Section 24: All of the W 1/2 of the W 1/2 of Section 24 lying north of the Muskegon
River, except that part lying east of the centerline of the Old Millpond Road;

() Section 25: All of Section 25;
(m) Section 26: NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4;

(n) Section 27: That portion of the NE 1/4 platted as Gilbert Manor and the N 1/2 of the NW
1/4;

(o) Section 33: E 1/2 of NW 1/4 and the W 1/2 of the NE 1/4; and
(p) Section 36: All that part of Section 36 lying east of the Muskegon River.
(2) B-Residential District.
(a) Section 13: That part lying south of Fifteen Mile Road; that part of the E 1/2 of the SE
1/4 of the SE 1/4 lying north of Fifteen Mile Road; SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4; and the W 1/2 of
the NE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4;

{b) Section 24: All of the E 1/2 lying east of the Muskegon River; that part of the NE 1/4 of
the NW 1/4 lying south of Fifteen Mile Road and east of the White Pine Trail State Park; and

(c) Section 36: All of Section 36 lying west of Muskegon River, except the NW 1/4.
(3) Commercial District.

(a) Section 3: That part of the NW 1/4 lying north of Northland Drive; the S 1/2 of the SW
1/4 of SE 1/4; and the S 1/2 of the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 including all the lots of the Brown’s
Addition not in the city and portions of the Chew’s Farm Addition; a parcel 200 feet N & S and 503.5 feet
E & W in the far NE corner of the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4; and a parcel 238.5 feet of the E & W and 365.5
feet N & S in the far SE comner of the NW 1/4;

(b) Section 12: All of the § 1/2 of the SW 1/4;

(c} Section 13: The NE 1/4 of the NW 1/4; and the E 1/2 of the NE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the
NW 1/4;

(d) Section 22: The E 1/2 of the SE 1/4;



30 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

{e) Section 23: The W 1/2 of the SW 1/4 lying south of the city limits of the City of Big
Rapids, the N 1/2 of the NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4 lying south of the Muskegon River, and the SW 1/4 of the
NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4;

() Section 26: The SW 1/4 and the W 1/2 of the NW 1/4; and

{g) Section 27: A parcel of land commencing at the NE Section Comer of Section 27, thence
south along the west right-of-way of Northland Drive 275 feet, thence west parallel with the north section
line 300 feet, thence north parallel with the right-of-way of Northland Drive 275 feet, thence east along the
north section line 300 feet to the point of beginning.

(4) Industrial District.

{a) Section3: The part of the NW 1/4 lying south and west of Northland Drive, excluding a
partial 200 feet N & S and 503.5 feet E & W in the far NE corner of the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, and also
excluding a partial 238.5 feet E & W and 365.5 feet N & S in the far SE comer of the NW 1/4; the NE 1/4
of the SW 1/4; the N 1/2 of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4; the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4; all the part
ofthe N 1/2 of the N 1/2 of the SE 1/4 lying W of Northland Drive; all the part of the NW 1/4 of the SE1/4
lying west of Northland Drive; a part of the SW 1/4 beginning 0 degrees, 49 minutes W 50 feet of the SE
corner of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, thence 34 degrees, 52 minutes W 395.8 fi., thence 62
degrees, 25 minutes 450 feet, thence N 24 degrees, 23 minutes E to N line of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of
the SW 1/4, thence E to the 1/16 quarter line, thence S to the point of beginning;

(b) Section4: The N 1/2;
(¢) Section 5: The part of the NE 1/4 east of U.S. 131 Expressway; and

(d) Section 12: The part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 not in the limits of the City of Big
Rapids.

(5) Highway Interchange District.

(a) Section 16: The SW 1/4; the N 1/2 of the SE 1/4; and the W 1/2 of the W 1/2 of the SW
1/4 of the SE 1/4;

(b) Section 17: The E 1/2 of the SE 1/4;
(c) Section 20: The E 1/2 of the NE 1/4; and
(d) Section 21: The NW 1/4; and the W 1/2 of the W 1/2 of the NW 1/4.
(6) Agricultural District. All land in the unincorporated portion of Big Rapids Township not
described in the other districts.

(Ord. 2, passed 8-12-1971; Ord. 2.01, passed 3-6-1973; Ord. 2.02, passed 3-6-1973; Ord. 2.03, passed
9-4-1973; Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974; revised 9-9-2015)



Zoning 31

153.016 A-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (USES AND DIMENSION REGULATIONS).
The following uses and dimension regulations shall apply in A-Residential District.
(A) Permitted uses.
(1) One-family dwellings;
(2) Two-family dwellings;

(3) Gardening, farming and small household pets but not including the commercial raising of
animals;

(4) Office of a physician, lawyer, dentist, veterinarian or other professional person residing on the
premises; and

(5) Churches or schools subject to the provisions of 153.130.
(B) Permitted accessory uses.

(1) Any other structure or use clearly accessory and incidental to a permitted use but not including
an additional dwelling unit;

(2) Parking for automobiles owned and used by a person(s) residing on the premises, but not
including more than two commercial vehicles per lot; and

(3) The keeping of not more than one person as a tenant in each dwelling unit.
(C) Minimum lot size.

(1) Forty-three thousand five hundred and sixty square feet for any lot, provided that existing
separately owned lots and platted lots may be accepted from this restriction, but such lots shall not be used
for building purposes unless they contain at least:

(a) Fifteen thousand square feet; and

(b) Eighteen thousand square feet for two-family dwellings.

(2) Any lots in subdivisions platted before the adoption of the Big Rapids Township Zoning
Ordinance on August 16, 1974, shall be exempt from the 15,000 square feet minimum requirement.

(D) Minimum street frontage. One hundred sixty-five feet, provided that existing separately owned lots
and platted lots may be excepted from this restriction.



32 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

(E) Minimum yard depth for principal structures.

(1) (a) From. Fifty feet from the front of the house structure to the nearest road or street right-of-
way line. The right-of-way line shall be the line 33 feet from the road or street centerline, or further, if so
established by easement grant and surveyed.

(b) Side. Fifteen feet from the side of the structure to the side lot line. Small accessory
buildings: eight feet from the side of the structure to the side lot line. A small accessory building is building
150 square feet or less no higher than 12 feet at the peak.

{(c) Rear. Fifty feet from the rear of the house structure to the rear lot line. Accessory
buildings 15 feet from the rear of the structure to the rear lot line.

(2) Existing separately owned lots and platted lots may be excepted from the above requirements,
but in such cases the front of the house structure shall not be less than 60 feet from the centerline of the
road or street, the side lot distance shall not be less than eight feet and the rear lot distance shall not be less
than 25 feet, providing such modifications do not violate the intent of this chapter.

(F) Floor area requirement.

(1) Single-family dwellings shall contain not less than 960 square feet of floor area, two-thirds of
which shall be on the main floor in multi-level dwellings.

(2) Two-family dwellings shall have not less than 800 square feet of floor area for each dwelling
unit, two-thirds of which shall be on the main floor in multi-level dwellings.

(3) All areas referred to are exclusive of any attached garage, open porch or other open attached
structure.

(G) Mobile homes. No mobile homes shall be permitted, placed or erected in A Residential District.
Travel trailers and other mobile homes designed for travel and not designed for semi-permanent placement
on the land may be temporarily stored on the ownerls premises.

(H) Other uses. No other use of structures and no other dimensions shall be permitted in A Residential
District, except as stated in this section.
(Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974; Ord. 3.04, passed 11-23-1976; Ord. 3.16, passed 6-1-1982; Ord. 3.28, passed
10-3-2000)



Zoning 33

153.017 B-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (USES AND DIMENSION REGULATIONS).
The following uses and dimension regulations shall apply in B-Residential District.
(A) Permitted uses.
(1) Single-family dwellings;
(2) Two-family dwellings;
(3) Boarding houses or rooming houses subject to the provision of 153.130;
(4) Multi-family dwellings;
— (5) Gardening, farming and small household pets, but not including the commercial raising of

(6) Nursing or convalescent homes or homes for the aged or infirm or indigent;

(7) Office of a physician, lawyer, dentist, veterinarian, surveyor, architect or other professional
person resident on the premises;

(8) Manufacturing and sale of handicraft, or home-craft products, providing that such products
are manufactured and sold by a person residing on the premises and not employing more than one
employee;

(9) Churches or schools subject to the provisions of 153.130;

(10) Year-round mobile home parks licensed annually by the state shall be allowed in B
Residential District by special permit from the Zening-BeardPlanning Commission, subject to the
provisions of 153.130; and

(11) Mobile homes not in mobile home parks, shall be subject to the provisions of 153.035.

(B) Permitted accessory uses.

(1) Any other structure or use clearly accessory and incidental to a permitted use, but not
including an additional dwelling unit; and

(2) Parking for automobiles owned and used by a person(s) residing on the premises, but not
including more than two commercial vehicles per family dwelling.

(C) Minimum lot size.

(1) Fifteen thousand square feet for single-family dwellings, existing separately owned lots, and
platted lots excepted;

(2) Eighteen thousand square feet for two-family dwellings;



34 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage

(3) Seven thousand five hundred square feet per family unit of multi-family dwellings; and
(4) For parcels where both public sanitary sewer and public water services are provided the
minimum lot size shall be 7,000 square feet for single-family homes, 9,000 square feet for duplex and 6,
500 square feet per apartment.
(D) Minimum street frontage.
(1) One hundred feet for single-family dwellings;
(2) One hundred feet for two-family dwellings;
(3) One hundred feet for boarding or rooming houses; and
(4) One hundred forty feet for multi-family dwellings.
(E) Minimum yard depth for principle structures.
(1) Front. Fifty feet from the front of the house structure to the nearest road or street right-of-way
line. The right-of-way line shall be the line 33 feet from the centerline, or further, if so established by grant
and surveyed.

(2) Side. Eight feet from side of structure to the side lot line.

(3) Rear. Twenty-five feet from the rear of structure to rear lot line. Accessory buildings: eight
feet from the rear of the structure to the rear lot line.

(F) Floor area requirements.

(1) Single-family dwellings shall contain not less than 800 square feet of floor area, two-thirds of
which shall be on the main floor in multi-level dwellings.

(2) Two-family dwellings shall contain not less than 750 square feet of floor area, two-thirds of
which shall be on the main floor in multi-level dwellings.

(3) Boarding or rooming houses shall contain not less than 750 square feet for the dwelling unit
plus 100 square feet for each renting tenant.

(4) (a) Multi-family dwellings shall be constructed to meet the following standards of square
footage per dwelling unit, based on the usage of the dwelling unit by the number of bedrooms.



Zoning

Number of Bedrooms Required Square Footage
0 550
1 650
2 750
3 850
4 950

35

(b) Each dwelling unit with more than four bedrooms shall have a minimum of 100 square
feet added to its total size for each bedroom over four.

{c) All areas referred to are exclusive of any area of attached garage, open porch or other

open attached structure.

(G) Mobile homes. Mobile homes not in mobile home parks shall be subject to the provisions of

153.035.

(Ord. 3.33, passed - -; Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974; Ord. 3.16, passed 6-1-1982; Ord. 3.19, passed 1-3-1995;

Ord. 3.29, passed 11-14-2000)



36 Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage



Zoning 37

153.018 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT (USES AND DIMENSION REGULATIONS).
The following uses and regulations shall apply in the Agricultural District.
(A) Permitted uses.
(1) Any use allowed in an A-Residential District;
(2) Farming, including the raising of livestock, raising trees and harvesting wood;
(3) Sale of products produced mainly on the premises; and
(4) Mobile homes subject to the provisions of 153.035.
(B) Uses by special permit as provided for by 153.130.
(1) Housing as follows:
(a) Boarding houses, rooming houses;
(b) Multi-family dwellings;
(c) Nursing and convalescent homes, as well as an adult foster care facility, foster family
home, and foster family group homes pursuant to Public Act 287 of 1972, being M.C.L.A. 331.681 - 331.694,
Public Act 11 of 1973, being M.C.L.A. 470.2 or Public Act 218 of 1979, being M.C.L.A. 400.701 - 400.735;
(d) Child care facilities;
(e) Bed and breakfast;
(f) Resorts; or
(g) Condominiums.
(2) Cemeteries;
(3) Home occupations subject to 153.190(C);
(4) Commercial uses listed in the Commercial District in 153.019(A);
(5) Other commercial uses as follows:

(a) Architect and surveyors’ offices;



38
(6)
@)
(8
()]
premises);

Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage
(b) Chiropractic offices;
(c) Counseling centers;
(d)} Furniture restoration businesses;
(e) Laboratories for the production of supplies for other professions;
(f) Indoor automobile, truck and equipment storage;
(g) Mini storage facilities;
(h) Greenhouses, nurseries and landscaping businesses;
(i) Truck repair facilities;
Transmission towers;
Sawmills together with such storage and accessory uses incidental thereto;
Recreational facilities as follows:
(a} Golf courses;
(b} Campground, camps and day camps;
(¢} Parks and playgrounds;
(d) Indoor shooting ranges;
(e) Riding stables; and
(f) Farm machinery demonstrations.
Other agricultural uses as follows:
(a) Retail butcher shop;

(b} Produce stand, farm market (including crops and farm products not produced on the

(c) Taxidermy and fur dressing (but not commercial slaughter houses);
(d) Veterinarian practice and veterinary hospitals;

(e) Living quarters on the farm; and

(f) Winery.



Zoning 39
(10) Mineral sand and gravel extraction and processing;
(11) Outdoor display and advertising media as provided by 153.175 through 153.178; and
(12) Recreational vehicles subject to the provisions of 153.101.

(C) Mininum lot size. One acre, except in platted areas where the State Subdivision Control Act, being
M.C.L.A. 560.101 et seq. shall control. Parcels that are accessible to both public sanitary sewer and public
water services; the minimum lot size shall be 7,000 square feet for single-family homes, 9,000 square feet
for duplex and 6,500 square feet for apartments.

(D) Minimum frontage. One hundred sixty-five feet.
(E) Minimum yard depths for principal structures.

(1) (a) Front. Fifty feet from the front of the house structure to the nearest road or street right-of-
way line. The right-of-way line shall be the line 33 feet from the centerline, or further, if so established by
grant and surveyed;

(b) Side. Fifteen feet from the side of the structure to the side lot line; and

(c) Rear. Fifty feet from the rear of the house structure to the rear lot line. Accessory
buildings 15 feet from the rear of the structure to the rear lot line.

(2) Existing separately owned lots and platted lots are excepted from the above requirements, but
in such cases the front of the house structure shall not be less than 60 feet from the centerline of the road or
street, the side lot distance shall not be less than eight feet, and the rear lot distance shall not be less than 25
feet provided such modifications do not violate the intent of this chapter.

(F) Floor area requirements.

(1) (a) Single-family dwellings shall contain not less than 800 square feet, two-thirds of which
shall be on the main floor in multi-level dwellings.

(b) Two-family dwellings shall contain not less than 750 square feet for each dwelling unit,
two-thirds of which shall be on the main floor of multi-level dwellings, plus 100 square feet for each
renting tenant.

(c) Rooming houses or boarding houses shall contain not less than 750 square feet of floor
area for the dwelling unit plus 100 square feet for each renting tenant.

(2) All area referred to are exclusive of any area of attached garage, open porch or other attached
structure.
(Ord. 3.33, passed - -; Ord. 2, passed 8-12-1971; Ord. 3, passed 8-8-1974; Ord. 3.16, passed 6-1-1982; Ord.
3.19, passed 1-3-1995; Ord. 3.29, passed 11-14-2000)



40

Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage



Zoning 41
153.019 COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (USES AND DIMENSION REGULATIONS).
The following uses and regulations shall apply in the Commercial District.

(A) Permitted uses. Any structure used for the sale of food or goods at retail or for the sale or
provisions of services as follows:

(1) Any use as permitted in B-Residential Districts;
(2) Antique shop;
(3) Automobile sales, repair and rental establishment;
(4) Automobile washing establishment;
(5) Bakery goods store;
(6) Bank;
(7) Bar or tavern;
(8) Barber shop or beauty parlor;
(9) Boat sales, repair or storage;
(10) Bowling lanes;
(11) Cabin colonies;
(12) Candy or confectionery store;
(13) Delicatessen and meat market;
(14) Dressmaking, millinery or clothing store;
(15) Drugstore;
(16) Dry cleaning or laundry establishment;
(17) Dry goods or notions store;
(18) Farm products stand;
(19) Farm machine sales, service and repair establishment;
(20) Fish bait, tackle or sporting goods store;

(21) Furniture and carpeting store;



42
22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
@7
(28)
29)
(30)
31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)
@37
(38)
(39)
(40)

@n

Big Rapids Charter Township - Land Usage
Funeral home or undertaking establishment;
Gasoline filling station and garage;
Gift shop;
Golf course and similar recreational facilities;
Grocery, fruit or vegetable store;
Hardware and paint store;
Hotel or motel;
Insurance agency;
Jewelry or clock and watch store;
Leather goods or luggage store;
Lock and gunsmith shop;
Parking area;
Photographic supply store and studio;
Radio and TV sales and service or musical instrument store;
Real estate agency;
Restaurant (including drive-in);
Shoe store or shoe repair shop;
Theater (excluding drive-in);
Upholstery shop; and

Other unlisted commercial nen-industrial type establishments consistent with the character of
the above by permit from the Zoning Administrator.

(B) Permitted accessory uses by special permit as provided under 133.130. Any accessory use, which
is clearly incidental to the permitted uses including the manufacture, compounding, processing or treatment
of products and clearly incidental to any service offered, and provided there is not therewith the operation
of any activity or display of goods in such a manner as to be obnoxious by reason of odors, dust, smoke,
light, noise or vibration, as determined by present standards or by the Board of Appeals upon complaint of
the Zoning Administrator.



Zoning

(C) Minimum lot size,

(1) The land area shall be three times the area of the structure to be built thereon; and

(2) In platted areas lot size to be established by the Board of Appeals.

(D) Minimum street frontage. Sixty-five feet.

(E) Minimum yard depths.

(1) Unplatted areas.

(a)
(b
(©)

(2) In platted areas yard depths to be established by the Board of Appeals.

(F) Dimensions for residential use. Residential uses in Commercial District shall conform to the
dimension regulations for B-Residential Districts as provided in 153.017(C) through (G).

Front. Fifty feet from the right-of-way line;

Side. Ten feet from side lot line; and

Rear. Ten feet from rear lot line.

(G) Adult businesses.

(1) Definition. ADULT BUSINESS as used in this chapter, shall mean any of the following:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(8)
(h)
@)
@)
k)

Adult book store or adult video store;
Adult cabaret;

Adult mini motion picture theater;
Adult motel;

Adult motion picture theater;

Adult smoking or paraphernalia store;
Billiard/pool hall;

Escort agency;

Massage parlor;

Pawnshop; or

Tattoo parlor.



il



